FAA Administrative Voice Enterprise Services (FAVES) Procurement - Screening Information Request (SIR)

Questions Regarding the Final SIR submitted to the FAA prior to June 5, 2009

	NO
	SIR Document

	Paragraph Reference

(i.e., Section and/or Attachment)
	Page

 No
	Questions
	FAA Response

	1
	Price Tables/Instructions
	Section B 
	General
	Implementation/installation costs are not referenced in the Price Tables & Instructions.  Where are the implementation/installation costs to be priced out?
	The approach used to distribute costs amongst price elements is up to individual offerors.  However, only one Gateway must be provided per location (or campus), and only one station must be provided for each identified user.  Nonrecurring as well as recurring price elements are provided for both Gateway and Station price elements.  System Acceptance charges are applicable for acceptance of a legacy system to be included within the FAVES program, and are applicable for acceptance of a system providing enterprise services at a location.

	2
	Section B
	Price Tables/Instructions
	General
	Instructions for Price_Maint_Input indicates this is for Legacy systems only.  Where is the Price_Maint_Input for the Enterprise equipment pricing?
	The maintenance of facilities transformed to an enterprise service must be recovered through the enterprise service price elements.  Nonrecurring as well as recurring price elements are provided for both Gateway and Station price elements.

	3
	Section C
	Paragraph 3.1.7.4
Local Access
	Page C-10
	This paragraph implies that the contractor can offer local access for FAVES. We believe that this was inadvertently left in during the previous revision.  Please clarify.
	This language will be removed in an amendment to the Statement of Work.

	4
	Section C 
	Sub-Section 4.3.5
	C-20
	If the FAA chooses not to use this contract to install cabling, what other method would it choose? GSA Schedule?  Have you considered outsourcing the cabling and database management outside of this contract?
	The FAA retains the flexibility to have cable installation performed in house by FAA personnel, the FAVES contractor, or a 3rd party depending upon the nature of the requirement.

	5
	Section L
	Section L.8.3
	General
	Section L states: “Offerors must provide sufficiently detailed bases of estimate to allow the evaluators to determine the reasonableness and realism of the proposed cost/price.  The Offeror must provide existing verifiable data, the judgment factors, rationale, and methodology applied in projecting from known data to the estimate, and the contingencies used by the Offeror in the proposed price.  The bases of estimate must be provided in one or more MS Excel workbooks which clearly provide traceability of a proposed CLIN price to a basis of estimate.”  Does the Government expect to see this information in a particular format within MS Excel and does the Government expect to see this information in a particular set of files? 
	No specific format has been specified; however, Bases of Estimate generally include: Labor Category, Labor Hours, Labor Rates, Overhead Rate, Fee and/or Risk, Other Direct Costs, and General & Administrative Rate.  For efforts involving equipment, Bases of Estimate generally include a consolidated materials list providing part number, description, manufacturer, unit price, quantity, as well as fee and / or risk.  The total for a Basis of Estimate should then correspond to a CLIN price.  Within all Excel spreadsheets, the Offeror should not use “value only” cells when the value is derived based upon a formula or function.

	6
	Section L


	Section L.8.3
	General
	Section L states: “Offerors must provide sufficient detail within their cost proposal so as to enable the FAA to create a notional transition schedule which represents the transition approach provided by the offeror within their technical proposal.  This detail may include a spreadsheet derived from the transition schedule from the Price Evaluation Tool which has the months populated for migration and transformation that reflect the offeror’s transition approach.”  If we do not provide a spreadsheet, what will constitute sufficient detail?


	If an offeror does not provide as part of their Volume III proposal a table containing information similar to the first five columns and all the rows with Inventory_and_Schedule tab from the Price Evaluation Tool, then Government will need to assign a migration and transformation month to each location within the Price Evaluation Tool.  Sufficient detail is that information required so as to uniquely assign a migration month and transition month to each location within the Inventory_and_Schedule tab.



	7
	Section L


	Section L.7.3
	L-8
	The recent responses to vendor questions state that the Past Performance Customer Surveys to be filled out by customer representatives of the past performance programs are to be submitted with the Past Performance Volume of the proposal.  Do these surveys constitute part of the page count allowable in the volume (12 total)?  Will you be revising Section L accordingly which currently states: "The points of contact should send the survey to the FAA Contracting Officer listed in section L.7.3."
	Past performance customer surveys do not count as part of the allowable page limit but must be submitted to the Contracting Officer. Section L.7.3 will be revised to clarify the delivery requirements for the past performance summaries and the past performance surveys.

	8
	Section L


	L.8.4, Volume IV: Subcontracting Plan
	L-18, H.21
	Is there a format/template that the FAA would like its respondents to use for submission of the small business subcontracting plan?

If yes, would the FAA please include the template in the final solicitation?
	There is no standard template; offerors may provide the information in a format of their choice.

	9
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

2.2.1 Transmission Quality Requirements
	11
	Attachment J-1 Section 2.2.1 (c ) references Table 3.2-2 which specifies Grade of Service (GoS) requirements for different types of connections for Busy Hour Busy Season (BHBS) traffic.  

Does the FAA have any data that they can share in the final solicitation that reflects what the BHBS traffic is?
	Not at this time, FAA will work with vendor post award to make available any additional information that may be required

	10
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

2.2.2 Grade of Service Requirements
	11
	Attachment J-1Section 2.2.2 Table 3.2-2 specifies Grade of Service (GoS) requirements for different types of connections for Busy Hour Busy Season (BHBS) traffic.  

Will the Enterprise FAVES system have to meet these GoS requirements in "local survivability" mode (i.e. during loss of Government-furnished WAN connectivity at a particular SDP location)?

Would the FAA please provide clarification in the final solicitation?
	The FAVES Technical Specification will be updated to clarify that GoS is best effort when a site is in local survivability mode.

	11
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

2.2.1 Transmission Quality Requirements
	11
	"If a FAVES service does not meet these transmission quality requirements, it is deemed to be in an outage condition and unavailable for use."  

                                                                                                Since the transmission Quality requirements rely upon the Government-furnished WAN,  NOT the FAVES contractor please confirm in the final solicitation that any such “outages” will not be included in SLA availability criteria.
	Section 3.2.3 of Attachment J.1 explains that outages of GFE comm are counted as customer time.

	12
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

3.2.3.1 Standby Power
	18
	Attachment J-1 Section 3.2.3.1 references standby power.  Bullet (b) states "Standby power systems must be included in the definition of CPE" and bullet (c ) states "As ordered by the Government, standby power must support FAVES operations…”

Is standby power a requirement at all sites, or only when ordered?

Would the FAA please clarify in the final solicitation?
	Standby power is within the scope of the definition of CPE, but is only required when ordered.

	13
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

4.4.1 Call Center Services Basic Capabilities (g)
	29
	Attachment J-1 Section 4.4.1(g), item 1 indicates that the FAVES Call Center Services management system administrative capabilities must include “an audit trail and change log history.” 

Would the government please amend the final solicitation to provide additional clarification specifying the methodology and level of audit trail and change history that is required (e.g. system maintenance, Call Center supervisor)?


	No, the FAA will evaluate what the vendor proposes.

	14
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

4.4.2.2 Interactive Voice Responses (b)
	31
	Section 4.4.2.2 (b) requires a minimum function “Accept caller information via telephone DTMF keypad signal or speech (e.g., name, address, account information, etc.).”

In the final solicitation, would the government please confirm that English is the sole caller language required to be supported by the speech recognition system, or delineate any other required languages?

This will allow the Offerors to provide the best pricing for a compliant solution.
	Requirements for support of languages other than English will be removed in an amendment to the Technical Specification.

	15
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

4.4.2.2 Interactive Voice Responses (f)


	31
	Section 4.4.2.2 (f) requires a minimum function to ”Query a database that delivers Agency-provided information to the caller…….”

Would the government please specify the transport type to be employed to conduct the data base dip? For example, web services, a secure SSL connection, or IPSEC 3DES/AES encrypted session? 


	No, the FAA will evaluate what the vendor proposes.

	16
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

4.4.2.2 Interactive Voice Responses (g)


	31
	Section 4.4.2.2 (g) requires a minimum function to ”allow callers to hear and verify their names and addresses in a Government-provided name and address database…(text to Speech Conversion).”

Would the government please provide more specificity regarding the database and format type the offeror would need to access to provide callers the required name and address verification?


	No, the  FAA will evaluate what the vendor proposes

	17
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

4.4.2.3 Routing Based on Database Query


	32
	Section 4.4.2.3 requires vendors to provide an IVR capability which includes “the ability to route calls or provide information based on a database query(s) of information contained in a Government-furnished database”. 

Would the government please provide more specificity regarding this database and format type the offeror would need to access to route calls or provide information?


	For call center applications, the FAA will provide additional detail at the time of definitization of the task order effort.

	18
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

5.1 Performance Monitoring
	33
	Attachment J-1, Section 5.1 (a) references performance monitoring and states that the FAVES system "must continuously monitor service performance on an SDP-to-SDP basis".  Section 1.5 gives a variety of definitions for SDPs. 

In the interest of gauging data volumes, could the FAA define in the final solicitation what SDP-to-SDP traffic must be monitored and reported on? (e.g. IP phone to IP phone, gateway router to carrier demarcation point, etc.)?
	The FAVES Technical Specification Section 3 will be updated to clarify that for on-net calls, the scope of monitoring is station to station and for off-net calls, the scope of monitoring is station to gateway or carrier demarcation point.

	19
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

5.1 Performance Monitoring
	33
	Attachment J-1, Section 5.1 (a) (1) references performance monitoring of signal level.  Signal Level is typically a transmission parameter and, as such, would be the responsibility of the FAA's WAN/LAN service providers as FAVES legacy and future equipments do/will not have visibility.  Would the FAA please confirm and explicitly clarify in the final solicitation?

Further if Signal Level is to be monitored and controlled (by anyone), we believe the minimum and maximum acceptable signal level would be identified by the FAA.  Please confirm and amend the final solicitation for clarity.
	The signal level monitoring requirement will be removed in an amendment to the Technical Specification.

	20
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

5.1 Performance Monitoring
	33
	Attachment J-1, Section 5.1 (a) (2) references performance monitoring of bit error rate (BER).   BER is typically a transmission parameter and, as such, would be the responsibility of the FAA's WAN/LAN service providers as FAVES legacy and future equipment does not and will not have visibility.  

Would the FAA please confirm and include clarification in the final solicitation?
	The BER monitoring requirement will be removed in an amendment to the Technical Specification.

	21
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

5.1 Performance Monitoring
	33
	Attachment J-1, Section 5.1(a) (3) and (7) both refer to latency.  Would FAA confirm that this is a clerical oversight (duplicate) or advise details if there is a missing monitoring requirement? 
	The duplicate latency requirement will be removed in an amendment to the Technical Specification.

	22
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

5.1 Performance Monitoring (a)
	33
	Section 5.1 Performance Monitoring requires that “The FAVES System Monitoring and Control capability must continuously monitor service performance on an SDP-to-SDP basis….”

Would the government please provide specifics of Provider Edge (PE) locations for the FAA WAN in order to assist in design and performance verification since the Contractor is responsible for SDP to SDP SLA performance, (e.g., latency and availability)? 


	See Attachment J.10 for information on the GFE WAN.  The vendor will have the opportunity to compile additional information during the enterprise planning phase. 

	23
	Attachment J.1
	Attachment J.1

7.4.2 Firewall
	45
	Will the FAA delete the requirement for premise based and network based firewalls as this capability is more appropriate to the WAN/LAN provider?

Specific firewall features seem to be beyond the scope of the FAVES basic objectives (e.g. “Guard FAA networks from attacks”, “FAVES must support connections to extranets which can facilitate inter-Agency interactions, or enable the FAA to interface with various trusted stakeholders”).
	No, on VOIP implementation, a VOIP firewall will be included in the solution to protect the call processing unit.

	24
	Attachment J.2
	Attachment J.2

Strategic Plan
	Pages 4 & 7
	Page 4, para 4.3 states "All telecommunications connectivity to FAVES service delivery points will be furnished by the government. This includes connections provided by the FAA'S secure IP-based wide area network (WAN), local loops from Local Exchange carriers (LECs), and traditional dial-up lines."

Page 7, para 5.0 states "Local trunk line access, long distance service, and WAN transport will either be furnished by the government or the FAVES Contractor depending on the preferred approach of the FAVES Contractor, the delta cost, and other operational considerations. The government is not committed to a particular approach since the overall vision for the FAVES program can be achieved through either approach." 

We recommend that the FAA deletes the last paragraph of  5.0 on page 7 to be consistent with the SOW and technical requirements which state that the use of the GFE WAN is mandatory.
	The Strategic plan will be updated to remove this language.

	25
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	In the parameters tab, a single number for stations per DS-0 appears to contradict the P.01 grade of service required in attachment J.1, Section 2.2.2, Table 3.2-2. 

Would the FAA please explain this apparent inconsistency and include clarification in the final solicitation?
	The number of DS-0s required per station for a P.01 grade of service is dependent upon call volume. Call volume information is not available. For evaluation purposes, the price evaluation tool assumes 1 DS-0 will be sufficient to support 10 stations.

	26
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	In the input new facilities tab, there appears to be no provision to show how traffic transiting new nodes will grow over time as sites migrate to the enterprise system.

In the final solicitation, would the FAA explain how offerors should depict this growth over time?
	Offerors must populate this table with the end state bandwidth required based upon the inventory within the Price Evaluation Tool.

	27
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	The input prices features tab contains pre-populated CLINS, descriptions, years, bands, and charge types. 

Is this a complete list, and/or is the offeror permitted to augment or supplement this information with the features it intends to propose?  Would the FAA please provide clarification in the final solicitation?
	Offerors may only provide additional CLINs for optional features.

	28
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	The input prices hardware tab appears solicit a comprehensive list of equipment that will be used in the solution. 

In a services-based pricing model, how does the unit element pricing apply?  For example, does it apply only to hardware components installed within an FAA facility?

Since hardware is not being sold directly to the customer through this structure, would the FAA please define what is meant by unit price in the final solicitation?
	The Government has established Station and Gateway CLINs to simplify the commodities ordered for the FAVES contract.  The equipment underlying these individual price elements must be specified, since all hardware delivered as part of the Offeror’s solution must become Government property.  Table B-9 has been created for documenting this.  Appropriate rows within this table form part of the Basis of Estimate for specific CLINs.  Other efforts may be included within the Basis of Estimate for the Station and Gateway CLINs (see Question 30).  Attachment J.5a indicates Table B-9 corresponds to the Input_Prices_Hardware tab within the Price Evaluation Tool.  

	29
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	The current price structure in the input price EOCC tab doesn’t enable offerors to propose volume discounts.  

Would the FAA consider revising this tab in the final solicitation as a banded structure based on quantity of end user stations in order to permit offerors to propose the most beneficial pricing?
	Section B and the price evaluation tool will be revised to allow for up to 10 pricing bands for EOCC maintenance and EOCC management.  If price bands are not desired, Offerors may use the band structure to define only one band in order to be consistent with the current framework.

	30
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	Where are the implementation/installation costs to be priced out?
	The approach used to distribute costs amongst price elements is up to individual offerors.  However, only one Gateway must be provided per location (or campus), and only one station must be provided for each identified user.  Nonrecurring as well as recurring price elements are provided for both Gateway and Station price elements.  System Acceptance charges are applicable for acceptance of a legacy system to be included within the FAVES program, and are applicable for acceptance of a system providing enterprise services at a location.

	31
	Attachment J.5(b) 
	Attachment J.5(b) Price Evaluation Tool
	not applicable
	Where is the Price_Maint_Input for the Enterprise equipment pricing?


	The maintenance of facilities transformed to an enterprise service must be recovered through the enterprise service price elements.  Nonrecurring as well as recurring price elements are provided for both Gateway and Station price elements.

	32
	Attachment J6 


	Attachment J6 

FAA Inventory
	not applicable
	Not all of the systems for the 61 VTS sites are listed. 

In the final solicitation, will the FAA provide a complete list to include all the information for the VTS systems installed? 

Will the FAA provide the system serial numbers, a bay face layout inventory for each of the VTS systems (except the MSL100 located at OEX) and Avaya Sold Numbers for all Avaya VTS systems? 

Will the FAA provide the remote access telephone numbers, login IDs and read-only passwords to all systems?

Providing this information in the final solicitation will enable offerors to determine what will be required in each case to develop a System Technical Refresh CLIN.   
	Offerors should base their proposals upon the version of the inventory distributed with the final SIR release.  The FAA recognizes that the inventory information is not 100% complete or accurate.

The FAA will not provide serial numbers, a bay face layout inventory or remote access.

	33
	Attachment J6 


	(revised and amended version of question number 16, submitted 5/29/09)
	Attachment J6 

FAA Inventory
	Part I – Section C, Subsection 1.2 (paragraph 2) states: “The FAA has 61 larger scale PBX systems that are managed under the ongoing Voice Telecommunications Systems (VTS) contract”.  The most recent version of the VTS inventory, in section J 6 provides detail for 60 VTS sites. 

(a) Would the FAA provide a complete list to include all the information for all the VTS systems installed, or confirm that there are only 60 VTS sites? 

(b) Would the FAA provide the system serial numbers, a bay face layout inventory for each of the VTS systems (except the MSL100 located at OEX) and Avaya Sold Numbers for all Avaya VTS systems? 
(c) Would the FAA provide the remote access telephone numbers, login IDs and read-only passwords to all systems?

Providing this level of detailed site information in the final solicitation will enable offerors to determine what will be required in each case to develop a System Technical Refresh CLIN.

	(a) There are 61 VTS systems at 57 locations.  One of the VTS systems was listed on the campus tab in the inventory, which there appears to be only 60 VTS systems.  See the response to question 16 regarding the accuracy of inventory information.
(b) If this information is available, it will be provided post award.
(c)  Yes, this information will be provided post award.


	34
	Attachment J6 


	Attachment J6 

FAA Inventory

(Note: additional reference: Question 21 posted with response on 5/29/09)
	not applicable
	The ETM system from SecureLogix was recently deployed by the FAA and is mentioned in the intro tab and listed on the VTS System tab but it is unclear if the FAVES vendor will be responsible for sustainment of this equipment and associated applications. Is the existing deployed ETM systems to be covered by the FAVES vendor?
Also, would the government please clarify who will be procuring SecureLogix units after transition – the government or the contractor?
	Yes.
There are no plans to acquire new SecureLogix units.

	35
	Attachment J7  


	Attachment J7  

Subcontracting Report for Individual Contracts
	not applicable
	Attachment J7 is a SF294 form, previously used by the federal government for semi-annual subcontract reporting.   Currently used, is the Electronic Subcontracting Reporting System (eSRS) which provides an on-line method for contractors to report their subcontracting activities previously accomplished with submission of Standard Forms 294 and 295. 

In the final solicitation, would the FAA please confirm which reporting vehicle is to be used?
	For proposal evaluation, please submit documents in electronic format using standard form 294.  eSRS will be used after contract award.
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